
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
 
Tuesday, July 26, 2016                                                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Study Session with the Parks & Recreation Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not the audience 
or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per speaker.  Speakers may request 
additional time on a future agenda as time allows. * 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA  
C-1. Minutes:  May 4, 2016 Black Diamond/Covington/Maple Valley Joint Meeting; June 14, 2016 

Special Meeting-Study Session; June 14, 2016 Regular Meeting; June 28, 2016 Regular Meeting; 
and July 12, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting (Scott) 

C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Authorize The City Manager to Execute a Statutory Warranty Deed Accepting Ownership and 

Dedication of Real Property for the Construction of SE 272nd Street, as a Condition of Approval of 
Cedar Springs Commercial Site Development (Lyons) 

 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Leslie Hamada:  July 14 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Laura Morrissey:  July 20 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Lesli Cohan:  July 14 meeting. 
• PRePAC Chair Jennifer Harjehausen:  June 29 meeting. 
• Economic Development Council:  next meeting July 28.  
• Planning:  July meetings canceled. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointment to Arts Commission (Council) 
2. Approve Gerry Crick Skate Park Public Art Project Design (Feser) 
3. Review 2016 Council Summit Action Items List (Bolli) 
4. Discuss Impact Fee Deferral Program (Hart) 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 

ADJOURN 

Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  July 26, 2016  

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MAY 4, 2016 BLACK DIAMOND/COVINGTON/ 
MAPLE VALLEY CITY COUNCILS JOINT MEETING MINUTES; JUNE 14, 
2016 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING-STUDY SESSION MINUTES; 
JUNE 14, 2016 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES; JUNE 28, 
2016 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES; AND JULY 12, 2016 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 

ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

EXPLANATION:  

ALTERNATIVES:   

FISCAL IMPACT:  

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the May 4, 2016 Black Diamond/Covington/ 
Maple Valley City Councils Joint Meeting Minutes; June 14, 2016 
City Council Special Meeting-Study Session Minutes; June 14, 2016 
City Council Regular Meeting Minutes; June 28, 2016 City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes; and July 12, 2016 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

1 of 61



Unapproved Draft-May 4, 2016 Black Diamond/Covington/Maple Valley Joint Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 

 

1 
 

 City of Black Diamond/City of Covington/City of Maple Valley  
Special Meeting - Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, May 4, 2016 
 
CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
Maple Valley Mayor Sean P. Kelly called the Special Meeting – Joint City Council Meeting to 
order on Wednesday, May 4, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. in the City of Covington Council Chambers, 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington.  Mayor Benson led the Flag Salute. 
 
INTRODUCTIONS: 
 
BLACK DIAMOND COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Tamie Deady, Janie Edelman, Mayor Pro Tem Carol Benson, Erika Morgan, Ron Taylor, and 
Mayor Dave Gordon.   
 
COVINGTON COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Joseph Cimaomo, Jr., Mark Lanza, Jim Scott, Mayor Jeff Wagner and Margaret Harto, Marlla 
Mhoon, and Mayor Pro Tem. 
 
MAPLE VALLEY COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Sean P. Kelly, Deputy Mayor Dana Parnello, Erin Weaver, Megan Sheridan, Les 
Burberry, and Bill Allison.   
 
Absent: Linda Johnson 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
There was a motion and a second to approve the agenda.  Motion passed with all voting in favor. 
 
OPENING REMARKS – MAYOR KELLY: 
Maple Valley Mayor Sean P. Kelly welcomed all attendees and introduced Honorable David 
Reichert. 
 
ITEMS FOR JOINT COUNCIL DISCUSSION: 
1.  Legislative District 8 Update from Congressman Dave Reichert 
 
Congressman Reichert gave an overview of of his regional history and thanked the Council and 
attendees for their time tonight and their service to the community.  He gave an overview on 
Ways and Means Committee, which is the chief tax-writing committee of the United States 
House of Representatives, International Trade, Tax Code Reform, Human Rights Initiative, and 
Police in Community plans. 
 
2.  Updates from Cities (Black Diamond, Covington, and Maple Valley)  
 
Mayor Benson provided a PowerPoint presentation with the update for the City of Black 
Diamond. 

2 of 61



Unapproved Draft-May 4, 2016 Black Diamond/Covington/Maple Valley Joint Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 

 

2 
 

 
City Manager Regan Bolli provided a PowerPoint presentation with the updates on projects with 
the City of Covington. 
 
City Manager David Johnston provided a PowerPoint presentation with the updates on projects 
with the City of Maple Valley.  
 
3.  ILA Updates and Joint Projects: (Public Works and Community Development Directors) 
 
City of Maple Valley Public Works and Community Development Director Laura Philpot 
discussed collaboration and services performed amongst the cities.   
 
4.  Discussion Topics: 
 

a. King County Metro 
 

Kathy Snow, the Alternative Services Program Lead, and Tricia Barbicane, the Community Van 
Project Lead, addressed the community van product through the alternative services program.  
They conducted community surveys and the Duvall survey helped direct the resources.  There 
was a brief discussion regarding the first trips, reliability issues, additional services, parking 
options and frequency of services on certain routes.  The community van program is to 
supplement to the evening and weekend service and non-commute local mobility options. There 
are upcoming set three elements of the community van program being the vans, community hub 
and the transportation coordinator.  Ms. Barbicane discussed the services, which are 
prescheduled non-commute trips to common destinations.    

 
b. Homelessness  

 
Covington Personnel & Senior Human Services Planner Victoria Throm, Black Diamond 
Community Center Director Cheryl Hanson, Greater Maple Valley Community Center Director 
Mark Pursley, and Maple Valley Food Bank Director Lila Henderson spoke about homelessness.  
She encouraged that the cities come up with a plan or set a goal.  
 
Mayor Kelly recommended that the Tri City Mayors or councilmembers meet with King County 
Executive and King County Councilmembers to discuss homelessness in Southeast King County.  
 

c. Parks and Recreation 
 

Greg Brown and Ethan Newton Parks and Recreation programs and Regional Trail update.  
Black Diamond Councilor Deedee spoke about The Gym usage and rental services.  
 

d. Public Safety 
 

Maple Valley Police Chief Nesel gave an update on the Tri City collaboration. 
 

3 of 61



Unapproved Draft-May 4, 2016 Black Diamond/Covington/Maple Valley Joint Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 

 

3 
 

Mayor Kelly thanked staff and the Council’s for getting together these past 9 years. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:47 p.m.  
 
 
Prepared by:       Submitted by: 
 
___________________________________         
Joan Michaud       Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk     City Clerk 

4 of 61



Unapproved Draft – June 14, 2016 Special Meeting - Study Session Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Meeting - Study Session Minutes 

Tuesday, June 14, 2016 
 
The Special Meeting Study Session was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 
271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, June 14, 2016, at 6:00 p.m., with Mayor 
Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Joe Cimaomo, Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, and Sean Smith. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director (arrived @ 6:20 p.m.); Ethan 
Newton, Parks & Recreation Director; Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Wagner called the study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Review Candidates and Consider Selection of Final Candidates to Interview for Appointment 
to City Council Position No. 6. 
 
The following candidates submitted letters of interest and were interviewed by the City Council 
for open Position No. 6:  Fran McGregor Hollums, Paul Max, Jennifer Harjehausen, and Zbigniew 
George Tomalik 
 
2.  Interview Selected Candidates for City Council Position No. 6. 
 
Mayor Wagner explained the interview process and begin with a series of four questions that were 
asked of each applicant in a round-robin format.  Candidates were given two minutes to answer 
each question.  Candidates were then given an additional two minutes each to provide a final 
statement. 
 
Mayor Wagner thanked all the candidates for attending the interview and explained that the 
selection process would follow at the Council’s Regular Meeting immediately following this study 
session. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To Evaluate the Qualifications of Candidates for Appointment to Elective Office Pursuant to RCW 
42.30.110(1)(h) from 6:40 to 7:07 p.m. 
 

5 of 61



Unapproved Draft – June 14, 2016 Special Meeting - Study Session Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

2 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:07 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

6 of 61



Unapproved Draft – June 14, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, June 14, 2016 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, June 14, 
2016, at 7:13 p.m., with Mayor Jeff Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Joe Cimaomo, Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, and Sean Smith. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager;  
Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Ethan 
Newton, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy 
City Clerk; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; Brian Bykonen, Associate Planner/Code Enforcement Officer; 
Darren Mhoon, Management Assistant; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Wagner invited Sgt. 1st Class Garlick to open the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Sgt. 1st Class Garlick accepted a proclamation in support of the United States Army and 
Our Veterans. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Colleen O’Rourke, Covington business owner, spoke regarding New Business Item No. 2 – 
Ordinance Establishing Permanent Land Use Regulations for Marijuana Businesses, in support of 
the 500-foot setback.   
 
Keisha Suveges, continued speaking regarding New Business Item No. 2 for Ms. O’Rourke who 
was feeling ill. 
 
Chele Dimmett, Covington resident, also spoke regarding New Business Item No. 2, in support 
of the 500-foot setback.   
 
Juliet Perry, Covington resident, spoke regarding New Business Item No. 4 – Appointment to 
Open City Council Position, in support of Jennifer Harjehausen for appointment to the 
councilmember position. 

7 of 61



Unapproved Draft – June 14, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

2 
 

 
Cameron Pearson, Kent resident, also spoke regarding New Business Item No. 2, in support of 
the 500-foot setback.   
 
Adam Stock, Enumclaw resident, also spoke regarding New Business Item No. 2, in support of 
the 500-foot setback.   
 
George Pearson, Covington resident, also spoke regarding New Business Item No. 2, in support 
of the 500-foot setback.   
 
Gwen Bartol, Covington resident, also spoke regarding New Business Item No. 2, in support of 
the 500-foot setback.   
 
Brooke Valentine, Kent resident, also spoke regarding New Business Item No. 4, in support of 
Jennifer Harjehausen for appointment to the councilmember position. 
 
Frank Sutton, Covington resident, spoke regarding his concerns with traffic problems at the 
intersection of SE Wax Road and Covington Way SE. 
 
Rick Zeleznik, Covington business address, unincorporated King County resident, also spoke 
regarding New Business Item No. 2, in support of the 500-foot setback.   
 
Stephen Childers, Maple Valley resident, also spoke regarding New Business Item No. 2, in 
support of the 500-foot setback.   
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  April 26, 2016 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes; May 10, 2016 City Council 

Special Meeting – Joint Study Session with Economic Development Council and Chamber 
of Commerce Board Minutes; May 10, 2016 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes; and 
May 16, 2016 City Council Special Meeting-Listening Session at Kentwood High School 
Minutes. 
 

C-2. Vouchers:  Void Voucher #34164-34164; Vouchers #34165-34212, including ACH 
payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of $385,861.03, dated May 27, 2016; 
Vouchers #34213-34268, including ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the 
amount of $1,723,254.75, dated June 10, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1005330937-1005330945 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of 
$180,036.08, dated June 3, 2016. 
 

C-3. Approve Resolution to Adopt Revised Council Policies and Procedures. 
 

  

8 of 61



Unapproved Draft – June 14, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

3 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2016-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
NEW COVINGTON CITY COUNCIL POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES. 

 
C-4. Approve Covington Community Park Phase 2 Design and Construction Grant Funding 

Project Agreement. 
 
C-5. Final Acceptance of Citywide Intersection Safety Improvements Project (CIP 1029). 

 
C-6. Adopt Resolution Updating Real Property Acquisition and Relocation Policy, Procedures 

and Guidelines. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, REPEALING 
RESOLUTION NO. 02/53 AND ADOPTING NEW COVINGTON 
REAL PROPERTY ACQUISITION AND RELOCATION 
POLICY, PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES 

 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Smith moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS: 
1.  Continued Discussion of Proposed New City Official’s Code of Ethics. 
 
City Attorney Sara Springer gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers went over each section and provided comments and asked questions.  Ms. 
Springer provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to place this item on the June 28 Regular 
Council Meeting Consent Agenda. 
 
NEW BUSINESS; 
2.  Consider Passing Ordinance Establishing Permanent Land Use Regulations for Marijuana 
Businesses. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions.  Mr. Hart and Ms. Springer provided 
responses. 

9 of 61



Unapproved Draft – June 14, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

4 
 

 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direction staff to revise the ordinance to 
remove the conditional use permit and use the 500’ buffer and place this item on the June 28 
Regular Council Meeting Consent Agenda.    
 
3.  Discuss and Approve Citizen Survey Questions. 
 
Communications & Marketing Manager Karla Slate gave the staff report for this item.  Ms. Slate 
provided a handout to Council, 2016 Benchmark Covington Citizen Survey Questions.  Ms. Slate 
directed Council’s attention to the three different options provided on the staff report. 
 
Councilmembers discussed the different options and asked questions.  Ms. Slate and City Manager 
Regan Bolli provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to select Option 2 (with a slight wording 
change) with Option 3 as a follow up and Question No. 7 re-worded. 
 
4.  Consider Appointment to Open City Council Position. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon nominated Fran McGregor Hollums to open 
Position No. 6 on the City Council.  Councilmember Lanza nominated Jennifer Harjehausen 
to open Position No. 6 on the City Council.  Mayor Pro Tem Smith nominated Zbigniew 
Tomalik to open Position No. 6 on the City Council.  Voting for Fran McGregor Hollums:  3 
(voting yes:  Harto, Mhoon, Wagner).   No majority.  Voting for Jennifer Harjehausen:  3 
(voting yes:  Cimaomo, Lanza, Smith).  No majority.  Voting for Zbigniew Tomalik:  1 (voting 
yes:  Smith) 
 
Council Action:  Voting for Fran McGregor Hollums:  3 (voting yes:  Harto, Mhoon, 
Wagner).   No majority.  Voting for Jennifer Harjehausen:  3 (voting yes:  Cimaomo, Lanza, 
Smith).  No majority. 
 
City Attorney Sara Springer provided Council with options to choose to table this matter to a 
Continued Business Item at a future meeting or the Council could also offer discussion before 
voting again. 
 
Councilmembers Mhoon and Harto provided remarks in support of appointing Fran McGregor 
Hollums.  Councilmembers Lanza and Cimaomo and Mayor Pro Tem Smith provided remarks in 
support of appointing Jennifer Harjehausen. 
 
Council Action:  Voting for Fran McGregor Hollums:  3 (voting yes:  Harto, Mhoon, 
Wagner).   No majority.  Voting for Jennifer Harjehausen:  3 (voting yes:  Cimaomo, Lanza, 
Smith).  No majority. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon provided remarks in support of appointing Fran McGregor Hollums. 
 

10 of 61



Unapproved Draft – June 14, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

5 
 

Councilmembers asked questions and Ms. Springer provided responses on the Council Rules of 
Procedures regarding the voting process. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Smith moved and Councilmember Harto seconded to allow 
a closed ballot vote.  Vote:  1-5 (voting yes:  Smith; voting no:  Cimaomo, Harto, Lanza, 
Mhoon, and Wagner).  Motion failed. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
table the appointment to the June 28 City Council Regular Meeting Continued Business.  
Vote:  5-1 (voting yes:  Cimaomo, Lanza, Mhoon, Smith and Wagner; voting no:  Harto).  
Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Wagner thanked all the applicants for attending and indicated it was a pleasure interviewing 
them. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Mayor Pro Tem Smith seconded to 
extend the meeting to 10:20 p.m.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Chele Dimmett, Covington resident, spoke in support of appointing Fran McGregor Hollums to 
open Position No. 6 on the City Council.   
 
Zbigniew Tomalik, Covington resident, thanked Mayor Pro Tem Smith for the nomination and 
spoke in support of Jennifer Harjehausen for open Position No. 6 on the City Council. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
To Consider Real Estate Acquisition Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(b) from 9:55 to 10:20 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

11 of 61



Unapproved Draft–June 28, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, June 28, 2016 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, June 28, 
2016, at 7:01 p.m., with Mayor Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Joe Cimaomo, Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, and Sean Smith. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; 
Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police Chief; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City 
Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; Darren Mhoon, Management Assistant; and Joan Michaud, 
Senior Deputy City. 
 
Mayor Wagner opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
Due to Senator Fain’s schedule running late, Public Communications was postponed until 
following Public Comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Colleen O’Rourke, thanked Council for all their work on the permanent marijuana zoning 
regulations. 
 
Radoivici Vlatimir, Covington resident, spoke against mandatory garbage service. 
 
Chris May, Covington resident, spoke against mandatory garbage service. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Representative Mark Hargrove, Senator Joe Fain, and Representative Pat Sullivan were 
recognized for their dedicated representation and service to the Covington community. 

 
Council recessed for a reception recognizing the 47th District Legislators at 7:15 p.m. and 
reconvened at 7:27 p.m. 

12 of 61



Unapproved Draft–June 28, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

 2 

 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  May 24, 2016 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #34269-34270 in the amount of $4,921.38, dated June 20, 2016; and 

Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005391732-1005391742 inclusive, plus employee direct 
deposits, in the amount of $184,348.26, dated June 17, 2016. 

 
C-3. Pass Ordinance Extending Electric Lightwave Telecommunications Franchise for an 

Additional Five Years. 
ORDINANCE NO. 13-2016 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 07-11, TO EXTEND THE CURRENT NON-
EXCLUSIVE TELECOMMUNICATIONS FRANCHISE WITH 
ELECTRIC LIGHTWAVE, LLC FOR AN ADDITIONAL FIVE 
YEARS 

 
C-4. Award Timberlane-Jenkins Stormwater LID Site 1 Bioretention Area and Groundwater 

Diversion Project (CIP 1027A) Construction Contract to Welwest Construction. 
 
C-5. Pass Ordinance Establishing Permanent Land Use Regulations Governing Marijuana 

Production, Processing, and Retail Uses. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, ESTABLISHING LAND USE 
REGULATIONS FOR MARIJUANA USES; CREATING A NEW 
CHAPTER 18.33 OF THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE 
(CMC) AND AMENDING RELATED CMC SECTIONS; AND 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NOs 06-2016 and 07-2016; 
PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS AND SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
C-6. Pass Ordinance Establishing New Chapter 2.95 of the Covington Municipal Code, Code of 

Ethics. 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-2016 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, RELATING 
TO THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A NEW CHAPTER 2.95 IN THE 
COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE, CODE OF ETHICS.  

 

13 of 61



Unapproved Draft–June 28, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

 3 

Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS: 
Human Services Commission – Chair Fran McGregor reported on the June 9 meeting. 
 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Vice Chair Bryan Higgins reported on the June 15 meeting. 
 
Arts Commission – Chair Lesli Cohan reported on the June 9 meeting. 
 
Parks & Recreation Priorities Advisory Committee – Chair Jennifer Harjehausen reported on 
the May 25 meeting. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the May 26 meeting; the 
June 23 meeting was canceled. 
 
Planning Commission – June meetings were canceled. 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Resolution to Adopt Six-Year 2017-2022 Transportation Improvement Program 
(TIP). 
 
City Engineer Bob Lindskov gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions.  Public Works Director Don Vondran 
provided responses. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING THE 2017-2022 SIX-YEAR TRANSPORTATION 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to pass 
Resolution No. 2016-12 adopting the City of Covington Six-Year (2017-2022) Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP).  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
2.  Consider Appointment to Open City Council Position No. 6. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza nominated Jennifer Harjehausen to open Position 
No. 6 on the City Council.  Councilmember Mhoon nominated Fran McGregor Hollums to 
open Position No. 6 on the City Council.  Voting for Jennifer Harjehausen:  2 (voting yes:  
Cimaomo and Lanza).  Voting for Fran McGregor Hollums:  4 (voting yes:  Harto, Mhoon, 
Smith, Wagner).   Motion carried. 
 

14 of 61



Unapproved Draft–June 28, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

 4 

NEW BUSINESS: 
3.  Consider Ordinance Establishing a Biennial Budget Beginning January 1, 2019. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions, and Mr. Hendrickson provided responses. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, REPEALING ORDINANCE 07-
10 RE-ESTABLISHING A CALENDAR YEAR BUDGET; AND 
ESTABLISHING A BIENNIAL BUDGET PROCESS 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2019. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Mayor Pro Tem Smith seconded to pass 
Ordinance No. 15-2016 establishing a biennial budget beginning January 1, 2019 and 
repealing Ordinance No. 07-10 which reverted back to a calendar year budget.  Vote:  6-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
4.  Consider Resolution Naming the Jenkins Creek Park Bridges in Honor of George and Susan 
Pearson. 
 
Parks & Recreation Director Ethan Newton gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, NAMING 
THE CITY OF COVINGTON JENKINS CREEK PARK 
BRIDGES IN HONOR OF GEORGE AND SUSAN PEARSON. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 2016-13, in substantial form as provided in the agenda packet, to name 
the two pedestrian bridges in Jenkins Creek Park after George and Susan Pearson.  Vote:  
6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
5.  Discuss Selection of Citizen and Honorary Citizen of the Year. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
name Mel and Rosie Knott as Honorary Citizens of the Year.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Harto seconded to 
name Chele Dimmett as Citizen of the Year.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 

15 of 61



Unapproved Draft–June 28, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

 5 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 
Councilmember Harto mentioned the need to fill the advisory board member position on the Kent 
Regional Fire Authority that she would be vacating and asked whether this item required action 
by the Council at the July 12 meeting.  City Attorney Sara Springer indicated she would look into 
the matter to see if council action was required. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff made comments. 
 
Councilmember Cimaomo announced he would not be in attendance at the August 9 meeting due 
to the upcoming birth of his child. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Fran McGregor, Covington resident, thanked the councilmember for their consideration and 
appointment to the Council. 
 
Chris May, Covington resident, spoke regarding several items:  1) desire for more classes at the 
pool; 2) concerns with traffic congestion on 272nd heading towards Maple Valley; 3) impacts of 
development behind the Addison’s Landing neighborhood on traffic congestion at 204th / 272nd 
and traffic congestion on Timberlane and Tall Timbers streets; and 4) impacts of development on 
wildlife and water.  Ms. May also belatedly thanked the Timberlane community for providing 
shelter during a power outage.  
 
Lesli Cohan, Arts Commission Chair, recognized fellow Arts Commissioners for their work on 
power washing the SeaHorse art piece at the Aquatics Center. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

16 of 61



Unapproved Draft – July 12, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Special & Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, July 12, 2016 
 
INTERVIEWS– 5:20-7:00 P.M.: 
The Council conducted interviews for openings on the Economic Development Council.  
Applicants interviewed included Joe Stave, Laura Roth, Adam Turley, and Matt McMahen. 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, July 12, 
2016, at 7:00 p.m., with Mayor Jeff Wagner presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Jeff Wagner, Joe Cimaomo, Margaret Harto, Fran Hollums, Marlla Mhoon, and Sean Smith. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark Lanza. 
 
OATH OF OFFICE TO NEWLY APPOINTED COUNCILMEMBER: 
City Clerk Sharon Scott performed the Oath of Office to newly appointed Councilmember Fran 
Hollums. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Mayor Pro Tem Smith seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Lanza who was celebrating his 36th wedding anniversary.  Vote:  6-
0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Andrew McCurdy, Covington Police 
Chief; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Karla Slate, Communications & 
Marketing Manager; Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney 
(arrived @ 7:20 p.m.); Casey Parker, Senior Accountant; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive 
Assistant. 
 
Mayor Wagner opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda as amended to move Agenda Items 1 and 2 to the next regular Council 
meeting on July 26.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Chele Dimmett accepted a proclamation as the 2016 Citizen of the Year, proclaiming 
Saturday, July 16, 2016, as Chele Dimmett Day in the City of Covington. 
 

17 of 61



Unapproved Draft – July 12, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

2 
 

• Mel and Rosie Knott accepted a proclamation as the 2016 Honorary Citizens of the Year, 
proclaiming Sunday, July 17, 2016, as Mel and Rosie Knott Day in the City of Covington. 

 
Council recessed from 7:10 to 7:25 p.m. for a reception for newly appointed Councilmember 
Hollums and Citizen and Honorary Citizens of the Year. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
Barry and Julie Smith, Covington residents, thanked Council for not making any changes to 4th 
of July fireworks regulations as it makes them feel a sense of community in their neighborhood.   
 
George Pearson, Covington resident, spoke against fireworks in Covington, in particular the 
illegal fireworks. 
 
Brian and Deana Roberts, Covington residents, also spoke against fireworks in Covington, in 
particular the illegal fireworks.   
 
Fran Neufelt, Covington resident, spoke against illegal fireworks. 
 
Chele Dimmett, Covington resident, state she has no problems with fireworks in Covington; 
however, asked what citizens could do to support the police with the problem of illegal fireworks.   
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Vouchers:  Vouchers #34271-34324, including ACH and electronic fund transfers, in the 

amount of $346,669.19, dated June 24, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005448952-
1005448962 and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005449025-#1005449025 inclusive, plus 
employee direct deposits, in the amount of $186,018.80, dated July 1, 2016. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda as amended to correct a typographical error.  Vote:  6-0.  
Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS; 
1.  Consider Appointment to Arts Commission (moved to July 26 meeting). 
 
2.  Consider Appointments to Covington Economic Development Council (moved to July 26 
meeting). 
 
  

18 of 61



Unapproved Draft – July 12, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

3 
 

3.  Consider Resolution to Purchase 3.4 Acres of Property to Create SoCo Park. 
 
Parks & Recreation Director Ethan Newton gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A REAL 
ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT AND OTHER 
CLOSING DOCUMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF PARK 
PROPERTY FOR SOCO PARK. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Harto moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded to 
pass Resolution No. 2016-14, in substantial form as provided in the agenda packet, to 
authorize the City Manager to execute a real estate purchase and sale agreement and other 
closing documents necessary to complete the purchase of 3.4 acres of property for the 
purpose of creating SoCo Park.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Consider Awarding Christensen, Inc. General Contractor the Contract for Covington Aquatic 
Center Room Addition Project. 
 
Parks & Recreation Director Ethan Newton gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Cimaomo moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
award the contract for the Covington Aquatic Center Room Addition Project to Christensen, 
Inc. General Contractor as the lowest responsive bidder in the amount of $169,144.50 and to 
authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Christensen, Inc. General 
Contractor for the same.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 
Councilmembers reviewed future meeting agendas. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Wagner called for public comments. 
 
George Pearson, Covington resident, spoke against fireworks.   
 

19 of 61



Unapproved Draft – July 12, 2016 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  July 26, 2016 
 
 

4 
 

There being no further comments, Mayor Wagner closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

20 of 61



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  July 26, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Vouchers:  Vouchers #34325-34381, including ACH payments and 
electronic fund transfers, in the amount of $161,391.06, dated July 8, 2016; and Paylocity 
Payroll Checks #1005507659-1005507674 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the 
amount of $191,720.06, dated July 15, 2016. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers: Vouchers #34325-34381, 
including ACH payments and electronic fund transfers, in the amount of 
$161,391.06, dated July 8, 2016; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1005507659-
1005507674 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of 
$191,720.06, dated July 15, 2016. 
 
   
   
   
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 

21 of 61



22 of 61



23 of 61



24 of 61



25 of 61



26 of 61



27 of 61



28 of 61



29 of 61



30 of 61



31 of 61



32 of 61



33 of 61



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: July 26, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A STATUTORY 

WARRANTY DEED ACCEPTING OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION OF REAL 
PROPERTY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF SE 272nd STREET (CIP 1127), AS 
A CONDITION OF APPROVAL OF CEDAR SPRINGS COMMERCIAL SITE 
DEVELOPMENT, CITY FILE NO. LU13-0018/0006. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Statutory Warranty Deed for dedication of right-of-way 
 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Principal Planner 
 Nelson Ogren, Development Review Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Pursuant to the Community Development Director’s Conditions of Approval (“Conditions”) for 
the commercial site development of Cedar Springs Apartments, City File No. LU13-0018/0006, 
You Old Poop LLC (“Developer”) is required to dedicate a portion of land along the northern 
property line to the city for the construction of SE 272nd St.  The Developer is not required to 
construct frontage improvements associated with the full design of SE 272nd St because the city 
is already undergoing design and right-of-way acquisition for a proposed road widening of SE 
272nd St from Jenkins Creek Bridge to 185th Ave SE (CIP 1127).   
 
Based on the requirement of the Conditions, staff is requesting the city council to authorize the 
city manager to execute the attached statutory warranty deed for accepting the ownership and 
dedication of real property for the construction of SE 272nd St as part of the Cedar Springs 
Apartments commercial site development. (Attachment 1) 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  None.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The city will incur minimal administrative costs to record the statutory 
warranty deed. Obtaining ownership of the real property from the Developer alleviates one of the 
right-of-way acquisition requirements of the city to complete CIP 1127. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion             Other 
 

Council member _______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute a statutory warranty deed 
accepting ownership and dedication of real property for construction of SE 
272nd St (CIP 1127) as a condition of approval of the Cedar Springs 
commercial site development, City File No. LU13-0018-0006. 
 

REVIEWED BY: Community Development Director, Finance Director, City Attorney, City 
Manager 

34 of 61



ATTACHMENT 1

35 of 61



36 of 61



37 of 61



38 of 61



39 of 61



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 26, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO OPENING ON THE ARTS COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
    Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director 
            
ATTACHMENTS: 
1.  July 12, 2016 City Council Meeting Blue Sheet (applications provided separately) 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:   
Council postponed this item from the July 12, 2016 City Council meeting due to applicant 
getting caught in rush-hour traffic from Olympia and unable to make interview on time.  Since 
that time another applicant has applied. 
 
Will Cummings was interviewed by the City Council on July 26, 2016 for the Arts Commission.  
Mr. Cummings is within the three-mile radius of Covington city limits and is eligible for either 
replacement position. 
 
Emma McMeen was interviewed by the City Council on July 26, 2016 for the Arts Commission 
(youth).  Ms. McMeen is within the three-mile radius of Covington, attends Kentwood High 
School, and is eligible for either replacement position.  However, youth only serve one year.  
Position No. 3 is a replacement position which term ends 5/31/2017 which would be the better fit 
for a youth appointment should the Council consider appointing this applicant. 
 
The Arts Commission currently has one member who resides outside of Covington city limits.  
Therefore, only of these applicants could be appointed at this time. 
 
Current Arts Commission Rules state: 
 
2.70.020 Membership, terms, residence requirements.  
(1) Membership. The Arts Commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the City 
Council, two of which may be youth members who must be between the ages of 14 and 18 at the 
start of their terms. Up to two of the members may reside outside the City, but those outside must 
reside within a three-mile radius of the City limits. The remaining five members must work or 
reside within the City limits. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open positions. 
 
 

40 of 61



 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 1 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2019. 
 

or 
 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 3 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2017. 

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager    

41 of 61



Agenda Item 1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: July 12, 2016 

SUBJECT:   CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO OPENING ON THE ARTS COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDED BY: Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager 
Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director 

ATTACHMENTS:  Application provided separately. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 

EXPLANATION:  Currently there are two vacant positions on the Arts Commission.  Position 
No. 1 has a replacement term ending May 31, 2019.  Position No. 3 has a replacement term 
ending May 31, 2017. 

Will Cummings was interviewed by the City Council on July 12, 2016 for the Arts Commission.  
Mr. Cummings is within the three-mile radius of Covington city limits and is eligible for either 
position. 

NOTE:  Ordinance No. 11-10. Membership, terms, residence requirements:  “The Arts 
Commission shall consist of seven members appointed by the City Council, two of which may be 
youth members who must be between the ages of 14 and 18 at the start of their terms.  Up to two 
of the members may reside outside the City, but those outside must reside within a three-mile 
radius of the City limits. The remaining five members must work or reside within the City 
limits.” 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open position. 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion            Other 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 1 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2019. 

or 

Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 3 on the Arts 
Commission with a term expiring May 31, 2017. 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager, Parks & Recreation Director 

ATTACHMENT 1

42 of 61



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 26, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  GERRY CRICK SKATE PARK ART PROJECT DESIGN 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Ethan Newton, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Artist Biography 
2. Sample Work 
3. Proposed Conceptual Design  

 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner   
 
EXPLANATION: 
Earlier this year, the council approved the Gerry Crick Skate Park renovation project which 
includes the replacement of all modular skating equipment. The park itself consists mainly of a 
concrete slab with the equipment secured to it. In addition, the council approved in the 2016 
budget, funds designated for a public art component associated with this project. The Arts 
Commission has also designated additional allocation for this art project, providing a total of 
$2,400 in funding available. This agenda item is for council to review and approve the selection 
of the artist and his conceptual design for the art work.   
 
The proposed art work is a mural installed on the concrete slab incorporating the new skate park 
equipment pieces. Attachment #3 is the proposed design, oriented as if you were located on the 
sidewalk looking down into the skate park. The art work is scheduled to start August 15th, 
following the installation of the new skate park equipment (scheduled August 1st – 8th). 
Volunteers and fellow artists will be assisting with the work. In future possible incidents of 
graffiti on the mural, which are deemed inappropriate, the city maintenance approach will be to 
either power wash or paint over the undesirable graffiti.  
 
The artist, Aaron Kekoa Lui-Kwan was born and raised in the Kent area and currently resides in 
Hawaii. He has a Bachelor’s degree in Art from the University of Hawaii and his work reflects 
his time spent in both the Pacific Northwest as well as Hawaii.  
 
The Arts Commission presented the artist’s information and some portfolio work examples to the 
Parks and Recreation Commission during their June 15th meeting and the Commission was able 
to review the conceptual mural during their July 20th meeting. In addition, the Arts Commission 
visited the skate park and showed the work examples to park users, whose response was positive 
in addition to having the design available during Covington Days. Both the Commissions are 
recommending the artist for the skate park mural project.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Not approve the proposed conceptual design and request alternative designs.  
2. Not approve the mural work to be completed.  
 

43 of 61



FISCAL IMPACT:   
The approved 2016 decision card for public art is $900 and the Arts Commission allocated an 
additional $1,500 of public art funding to the project for a total of $2,400. The current estimated 
cost of the proposed project includes the artist stipend and all project related materials and 
equipment ($2,200) and volunteer support ($200). 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance        Resolution     X   Motion          Other 
 

Council member ________________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the selection of the artist and conceptual design for the 
installation of a painted mural at the Gerry Crick Skate Park as recommended by 
the Arts and the Parks and Recreation Commissions.  
 

REVIEWED BY: City Manager; Parks and Recreation Director 
 

44 of 61



Artist's Bio 

Aloha, I am Aaron Kekoa Lui-Kwan, an artist, born and 
raised in the Pacific Northwest. Currently living and working 
on the Island of Oahu. In 2007 I graduated from the Univer
sity of Hawaii with a Bachelors degree in Art. After gradua
tion, I continued to expand my professional venture. Having 
lived in Kent, Hilo, and Honolulu; my artistic vision has been 
greatly influenced by those incredible environments. My 
contemporary style is influenced by my love of nature and 
my use of vivid color inspires emotion with each brush stroke. 

Numerous companies utilize my illustrations and design work. My freelance work in
cludes, designing for T&C Surf, a world renowned manufacturer of surfboards. 

Producing original painted works on diverse surfaces including: 

canvas 
paper 
wood 
walls & floors 
water bollltS 
clothing 
surf and skateboards 
car hoods 

My art has now evolved to include a different surface as well. .. the human body. As a 
licensed Tattoo Artist, I've been able to bring my art to the living canvas. 

I have developed my own style using: 

my Hawaiian heritage 
modern local lifestyles 
Asian and Urban influences 
background in the Fine Arts 

Every tattoo is an expression of my own visions. My goal is to create art for the tattoo 
collector, that is an original and something they will be proud to wear forever. The ma
jority of my work is free-handed on the client, to fit their body. My client's realize they 
are getting a personal, one-of-a-kind piece of body art. Every tattoo is a learning experi
ence and an extension of myself. 

Aaron Kekoa Lui-Kwan http://aklkgrafix.wix.com/aklk 

Attachment 1 - Artist Biography

45 of 61



Attachment 2 Sample Work

46 of 61



ATTACHMENT 3 - Proposed Conceptual Design

47 of 61



Agenda Item 3   
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 26, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  REVIEW THE 2016 SUMMIT ACTION ITEMS LIST 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. 2016 Summit Action Items List 

 
PREPARED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On January 30, 2016 the Covington City Council and Management Team held their annual 
summit to discuss ongoing and new projects and policies for the coming year.  After the summit 
was held, a summary was drafted by facilitator Jim Reid and adopted by Council.  From that 
summary an action item list was created to track the work completed on each action item from 
the summit.  Periodically staff reviews this list, and it is now being presented to council at the 
mid-year mark.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:    
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       Ordinance      Resolution        Motion ____Other 
 

This item is for discussion purposes only. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager  
 

48 of 61



2016 Summit Action Items 

Item Task Status Person(s) Assigned 

Vision, Mission, Goals 1. Retitle “Youth and Families” - change language
to read “Provide city services, programs, and
facilities that emphasize and meet the needs of
Covington’s…”  Propose a word for the ending
of the sentence that is inclusive, welcoming,
and personable.

2. Council asked the staff to use a better word
than “residents” or “citizens.”

3. Once they have reached consensus on the new
goal statement, the vision, mission, and goals
should be given to the Commissions with a
request that their members react to and, if
interested, comment on these items.

Being worked on and will be brought forth at an 
upcoming council meeting in the next few months.  

Karla 

Strategic Plan 1. Identify more specific strategies to achieve the
goals (a “road map”); b) identifying and ranking
priority actions or projects to advance the goals
and strategies; and c) more clearly directing
resources to those actions or projects.

2. Present a proposed process, including a
timeline for producing the initial plan and
efficient means for obtaining input from the
Commissions and public.

Met with Jim Reid and developed a task plan, timeline 
and budget, worked on survey to tie into plan.  Jim is 
meeting with Management Team on 7/26/16. 

Regan, Richard, Rob 

Biennial Budget Initiate a biennial budget process beginning on 1 
January 2017.  The first biennial budget will be for 2017-
’18 and needs to be adopted by resolution no later than 
June of this year 

Brought to council and passed an ordinance to start the 
budget process for a Jan 1, 2019 implementation date. 

Rob 

Public Safety 1. reach out to and educate business owners and
neighbors; b) encourage them to voluntarily
take more responsibility for crime prevention;
and c) encourage the use of building design

Have visited nearly 30 different organizations including 
service organizations, HOA’s, businesses, radio station, 
commissions, RFA, schools and more.  Discussed public 
safety related issues and how we can all be involved.   

Andy, Karla, Sharon, 
Regan 

ATTACHMENT 1

49 of 61



 

Public Safety Cont. 

features that help prevent such crimes as 
vandalism, burglaries, and shoplifting.  

2. Help establish more block watch groups. Work 
with neighborhood organizations, including 
Home Owners’ Associations (HOAs).  The City 
may also work with schools to educate 
administrators, parents, and students about 
what they can do to help prevent crimes.       

3. Increase participation in the City’s Volunteers in 
Police Service program. 

4. Discuss with Lakepointe Developers about a 
storefront. 

5. Work for a substance abuse treatment facility 
in the Covington area. 

Been heavily involved in the opening of the Kent 
substance abuse Treatment Center. 

Discussed a police storefront at the Lakepointe 
Development with the developers but have been turned 
down.   

20th Anniversary  1. Begin with a “soft” opening on 31 August 2016, 
the 19th anniversary, and ends with a 
celebration on 31 August 2017. 

2. Develop a proposal, including options and a 
budget. 

Recommendations have been put together and will be 
presented to council in August. 

Karla 

Homelessness  Get this item on the agenda and discuss and present on 
this topic at the 2016 annual tri-cities meeting.   

Done Regan, Sharon, 
Noreen 

Town Center 1. Determine if and when the School District will 
put the property on the market;  

2. Prepare a resolution for the City Council to 
endorse the bond measure that the School 
District will place on the ballot; 

3. Prepare  a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with Panattoni to purchase the school 
property when it comes available;  

4. Organize a Council “listening session” at 
Kentwood High School 

1. After the school bond failed we met with KSD, 
bond will be put on the Nov 2016 ballot.  
Property will be available roughly 2 years from 
the time the bond passes. 

2. Resolution was prepared and passed and sent to 
KSD. 

3. Researched our RFP with the other final 
consultant for our town center development and 
met to discuss this project with them. 

4. Held listening session at Kentwood. 

Town Center Team 

50 of 61



Citizen Survey Conduct a citizen survey including a few questions 
regarding town center. 

Developed questions, presented to council and 
submitted to survey firm. 

Karla, Regan 

Volunteer 
Appreciation  

Combine the volunteer appreciation dinner with a 
summer concert and have a volunteer night. 

Done.  This event is planned for August 5th and combines 
the appreciation dinner and a summer concert at CCP. 

Noreen, Karla 

State of the City Combine the “State of the City Address” with the event 
at which the “Commissioner of the Year” Award is given.  
This event would most likely be held in January or 
November.   

Working on planning this event for January 2017.   Sharon 

Youth City  Council 1. Draft a youth city council/board ordinance 

2. Recruit adult leaders 

Met with and gathered numerous bylaws and ordinances 
from other jurisdictions.  Working on a resolution to be 
presented to council.   

Regan, Sharon 

Illegal Dumping 1. Work with HOA’s to help prevent illegal 
dumping. 

2. Council agreed to work closely with the 
business community to help prevent or reduce 
illegal dumping and to ensure that commercial 
areas are well maintained. 

3. Monitor illegal dumping trends after mandatory 
garbage takes effect. 

1. Letter to HOA’s asking for reporting of any illegal 
dumping.  Prepared a “What to Do” sheet to give 
to HOA’s and others.   

 

Richard, Regan 

Council Policies and 
Operations 

1. Amend current polices and operations to reflect 
the changes agreed to at the council summit.   

2. Draft a code of ethics.  

3. Discussion with commissions on how the 
Council and Commissions interact.  The purpose 
of these discussions will be to elicit from 
Commission members any ideas for improving 
communications and interactions, including the 
current monthly report Commission Chairs give 
at a council meeting.   

 

 

1. Policies amended and approved by council. 
2. Code of ethics drafted and approved by council. 
3. Spoke with each commission and presented 

findings to council.   

Sara, Sharon, MT 

51 of 61



Letter from Mayor Letter of gratitude sent to Commission members when 
they step down, and urge them to complete the survey. 
The Mayor would also like the letter to include an offer 
for departing Commission members to meet with him to 
discuss their experience serving the City on a 
Commission.   

Converting the current email to letter form for Mayors 
signature and it will include invitation to meet with the 
Mayor.   

Sharon, Karla 

Sister City Facilitate the cultural exchange program and recruit 
host families. 

Developed a recruitment packet, visited high schools and 
other organizations to recruit host families and 
coordinated travel plans with Tatsuno.    

Regan, Karla 

Legislative Legislative Agenda and lobbying efforts Met numerous times with our legislators throughout the 
session and after the session.  Continually work with our 
city lobbyist.  Invited legislators to council meeting to 
recognize them for their service.   

Regan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52 of 61



Agenda Item 4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: July 26, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS IMPACT FEE DEFERRAL PROGRAM FOR THE DEFERRAL OF 

PAYMENT FOR TRANSPORTATION AND SCHOOL IMPACT FEES FOR 
SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED AND ATTACHED RESIDENTIAL 
CONSTRUCTION PURSUANT TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL (ESB) 5923. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Director of Community Development 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 
None.  

 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Principal Planner 
 Kelly Thompson, Senior Permit Center Coordinator 

 
EXPLANATION: 
 
A. What is the Impact Fee Deferral Program? 

 
In 2015 the state legislature passed, and the governor signed into law, ESB 5923. ESB 5923 
requires counties, cities, and towns to adopt an impact fee deferral system for the collection of 
impact fees for new single-family detached and attached residential construction. The deadline to 
implement a single-family impact fee deferral program is September 1, 2016. 
 
Under the new law, counties, cities, and towns must adopt a deferral system for the collection of 
impact fees that, upon developer request, delays payment until the time of either: 
 

1. Final inspection; 
2. Issuance of the certificate of occupancy or equivalent certification; and/or 
3. The closing of the first sale of the property 

 
(NOTE: Payment at the time of building permit issuance is the City’s current requirement.)  
 
Additional provisions of the new law include: 
 

• Deferral of payment for impact fees may be limited by the city to the first twenty (20) 
single-family residential building permits per applicant, annually.  
 
o The city may increase the number of deferrals beyond twenty per applicant 

annually if the city desired to do so. 
 

o For the purposes of this legislation, to limit the “spin-off LLC” issue, “applicant” 
is defined to include “an entity that controls the applicant, is controlled by the 
applicant, or is under common control with the applicant.” 

53 of 61



 
• The amount of the impact fees that may be deferred is determined by the fees in effect 

at the time an applicant applies for a deferral. 
 

• An applicant seeking a deferral must grant and record a lien against the property in 
favor of the municipality in the amount of the deferred impact fee. 
 

• Municipalities may collect reasonable administrative fees from applicants seeking a 
deferral. 
 

• Municipalities (and school districts) are authorized to institute foreclosure proceedings 
if impact fees are not paid when determined due by the city, or eighteen (18) months 
after issuance of the building permit, whichever occurs first. 
 

• The city must provide data to the Department of Commerce for an annual report, 
beginning December 1, 2018, on the payment and collection of impact fees. 
 

• ESB 5923 establishes the impact fee deferral system until 2022, when it would be re-
evaluated by the state legislature for possible further application.  

 
B. City Staff’s Recommendation for Covington’s Impact Fee Payment Deferral Program 

 
In the City of Covington item 1 (final inspection) and item 2 (issuance of the certificate of 
occupancy) above occur at the same time for single-family dwellings. This means that essentially 
two options are available for the city to choose from for requiring payment of deferred impact 
fees: 
 

1. Time of final inspection (this is when the City does an inspection of the single-family 
dwelling and approves the dwelling for occupancy); and/or 
 

2. Time of closing of the first sale of the property. 
 
City staff recommends the first options, a deferral program that defers the payment of impact 
fees until final inspection for a certificate of occupancy, for the following reasons: 
 

• Most importantly, the city would retain more control over administration of the process, 
making the program far more manageable for city staff. 
 

• The city’s permit tracking system is already set up to accommodate the tracking of 
payment deferrals as part of the building permit process.  
 

• By requiring payment of deferred impact fees at the time of final occupancy, the city can 
operate under its current reporting system and easily coordinate the tracking of deferred 
units with the finance department.  

 

54 of 61



 City staff does not recommend the second option, a deferral program that defers the payment of 
impact fees until closing of the first sale of the property, for the following reasons: 

 
• If deferred payments were delayed until closing, staff would be required to track down 

later unit sales and would also be in a position of dealing with multiple parties—buyer, 
seller, escrow agent, etc.—rather than just the applicant/seller.  
 

• The city’s permit tracking system is not set up to identify when a unit is sold or when 
payments are made through escrow.  
 

• Moving the deferral payment to closing may increase the finance department’s work load 
and would require modifications to their current system to accommodate escrow 
payments.  
 

• Further, allowing the fee to be paid at closing introduces some risks to the city and school 
district for collection of the impact fees. If the building is not sold after it is completed, 
the city would trigger payment of impact fees at 18 months from issuance of the building 
permit. If the fees are not paid, the only enforcement option the city will have is to send 
the matter to collections or foreclosure proceedings.  The city would then become a lien 
holder on the single-family dwelling, which is not an ideal situation.  Further, if legal 
action had to be taken, it would put additional strain upon the city’s finance department 
for tracking and collecting payments.  

 
C. How Will the Impact Fee Deferral Program Work in Covington? 

 
An applicant will be required to fill out an Impact Fee Deferral Request form and pay a non-
refundable administration fee to cover staff’s time to process the request and prepare the 
previously noted liens for recording against the property. If the applicant has not exceeded their 
twenty annual deferrals, city staff will prepare the lien against the property in the amount of the 
deferred impact fees and the applicant will be required to file the lien against the property. If the 
applicant has exceeded their twenty annual deferrals, city staff will deny their application and the 
applicant will be required to pay all impact fees at the time of building permit issuance. 
 
For approved payment deferrals, prior to the city’s final inspection and issuance of the certificate 
of occupancy, an applicant will be required to pay the deferred impact fees and remove the lien 
from the property. Once the applicant pays the impact fees (and associated administrative fees), 
and provides proof the lien has been removed, the city will complete the final inspection and 
issue the certificate of occupancy. At that time, the dwelling unit is authorized for occupancy. 
Temporary certificates of occupancy will not be issued when impact fees are deferred—an 
applicant will be required to complete their project and obtain final occupancy if they utilize the 
impact fee deferral program. 
 
D. Creation of New Title 19 CMC for Impact Fees 

 
As part of the impact fee deferral ordinance process, staff is reorganizing the current impact fee 
chapters in the Covington Municipal Code into a single new title for all impact fees—a new Title 

55 of 61



19 CMC (currently, transportation impact fees are in Title 12 and school impact fees are in Title 
18). The new impact fee payment deferral program will be included as part of the ordinance for 
adoption of the new Title 19. 
 
Because state statutes closely governs and dictates how the city may assess and collect impact 
fees, the new Title 19 serves primarily as a tool to restructure the same CMC provisions that 
currently govern the city’s collection of impact fees. However, in addition to restructuring and 
reorganizing the city’s current impact fee regulations for easier interpretation and 
implementation, staff will be presenting some recommended additions and changes to the current 
CMC, including: 
 

• Assessment of impact fees for a change of use if the change of use impacts public 
facilities (the city currently does not assess impact fees upon change of use). 
 

• Capping waivers of impact fees for low-income housing to eighty percent (80%) of the 
impact fees assessed for that project. State statutes allow for up to an 80% waiver of 
impact fees for low-income housing developments without requiring the waived impact 
fees to be matched by the city from funds other than the impact fee funds. Any waiver 
amount above 80% would require the city to pay the additional amount waived above 
80%.  
 

• Housekeeping updates to the type of building permits excluded from the assessment of 
impact fees (i.e. building permits that do not affect public facilities, such as for fences, 
decks, etc.) 

 
E. Next Steps 

 
Staff is working on completing the draft ordinance to adopt a new Title 19, Impact Fees 
(including the impact fee payment deferral program). A public hearing on the city’s proposed 
impact fee payment deferral program and new Title 19 is scheduled to be held at the August 9, 
2016, regular council meeting, which will be followed by council discussion and consideration 
of the proposed ordinance. Accordingly, the proposed ordinance to adopt a new Title 19, Impact 
fees (including the impact fee payment deferral program) will be included in the August 9, 2016 
council packet.    
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 

1. Return the issue to city staff for further study and analysis. 
 

Implementation of the impact fee payment deferral program is required by state law. While 
there are a few areas of flexibility to the code provisions governing the city’s specific impact 
fee payment deferral program (e.g. deferral of impact fees could be extended to the time of 
unit sale vs. time of final inspection; the city could increase the annual number of deferrals 
per applicant beyond twenty) the majority of the deferral program provisions, and the 
forthcoming proposed ordinance, follow state law requirements.    

 

56 of 61



 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
The implementation of the impact fee deferral program will cause the collection of transportation 
and school impact fees to be delayed beyond their current collection timeframes. Accordingly, 
there could be the same delay in the availability of said funds for corresponding capital 
improvement programs.  
 
The state legislation provides that local governments may collect reasonable administrative fees 
to cover the costs of implementing the deferral program. Staff is proposing that the council adopt 
a $143 Impact Fee Deferral Request non-refundable administrative fee to be assessed per 
request. The fee will be incorporated into the next fee resolution update and will be subject to 
increases as set forth by the council. (Note: $143 is the current billable rate for 1 hour of 
community development staff time.)  
 
The applicant will be responsible for all recording costs associated with the liens and the release 
of lien forms required for the impact fee deferral program.   
 
The deferral of impact fees does not preclude the developer from paying additional 
administrative fees for the collection and processing of the actual payment of impact fees as 
currently set forth in the city’s fee resolution. The current fee is $70 per impact fee 
(transportation and schools).  
 
As proposed, full cost-recovery for implementing the deferral program will be achieved through 
the applicable administrative fees and recording costs borne by the applicant.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution         Motion   X  Other 
 

Discussion item only. 
 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager, Community Development Director, Finance Director, 
 City Attorney. 

57 of 61



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  July 26, 2016 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 9, 2016 
 Special Meeting 

Joint Study Session with Human Services Commission 
 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 9, 2016 
 Regular Meeting 

 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

58 of 61



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, August 9, 2016 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                      
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1.  Funding Cycle Applications 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 
 
 
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 07/21/16 

 

59 of 61

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, August 9, 2016                                                                                                      City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Study Session with the Human Services Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Chief for a Day Proclamation (Chiefs Ellie and Spencer) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  July 26, 2016 Special Meeting-Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission 

and July 26, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Addendum to Interlocal Agreement with Covington Water District Regarding SR 516 – Jenkins 

Creek to 185th Place SE (CIP 1127) (Vondran) 
C-4. Interlocal Agreement with City of Kent Regarding Capital Improvement Projects and Tetra Tech 

Design Supplement (CIP 1127) (Vondran) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Comment and Consider Ordinance on an Impact Fee Deferral Program (Lyons) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Consider Appointments to the Economic Development Council (Council) 
3. PRePAC Final Recommendation (Harjehausen) 
4. Discuss and Provide Direction for King County Community Van Program (Hart) 
5. Consider Resolution Supporting Port of Seattle Grant Application for Marketing (Slate) 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

Draft 
as of 07/21/16 

 

60 of 61

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

61 of 61


	07-26-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, July 26, 2016                                                                                                          City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 07-26-2016 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 05.04.2016 Tri City Special Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-1 Attachment 2 06.14.2016 Special Meeting - Councilmember Interviews
	Consent C-1 Attachment 3 06.14.2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-1 Attachment 4 06.28.2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	ORDINANCE NO. 15-2016

	Consent C-1 Attachment 5 07.12.2016 Special for Interviews & Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 07-26-2016 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachments
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet Cedar Springs 272nd Dedication_Blue Sheet_072016
	Consent Agenda Item C-3
	Covington City Council Meeting

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1_Cedar Springs 272nd Dedication
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 07-26-2016 Appointment to Arts Commission
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachment 1 07-12-2016 Appointment to Arts Commission
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 2 Blue Sheet Skate Park Proposed Art Blue Sheet 07-12-2016
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachment 1 - Artist Bio
	Item 2 Attachment 2 - Sample Work
	Item 2 Attachment 3
	Item 3 Blue Sheet BS_Summit Action Items List
	Item 3 Attachment 1 Council_2016 Summit Action Items
	Item 4 Blue Sheet _Impact Fee Deferral Program_072616
	Agenda Item 4

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	08-09-2016 Special Joint Meeting w-Human Services Commission Agenda
	Tuesday, August 9, 2016 – 6:00 p.m.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	08-09-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, August 9, 2016                                                                                                      City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




